



SPONSOR: Rep. Dorsey Walker & Sen. Hoffner
Reps. Collins, K. Johnson, Parker Selby, Spiegelman;
Sens. Gay, Huxtable, Pettyjohn, Richardson

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
152nd GENERAL ASSEMBLY

HOUSE BILL NO. 394

AN ACT TO AMEND TITLE 16 OF THE DELAWARE CODE RELATING TO HEALTH PLANNING AND
RESOURCES MANAGEMENT.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE:

1 Section 1. Amend § 9301, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
2 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

3 § 9301. Purpose.

4 ~~It is the~~ The purpose of this chapter ~~is~~ to assure ~~that there is~~ continuing public scrutiny of certain health-care
5 developments which could negatively affect the quality of health care or threaten the ability of a health-care ~~facilities~~
6 facility to provide services to the medically indigent. This public scrutiny is to ~~be focused~~ focus on balancing concerns for
7 cost, ~~access and quality~~. access, and quality, while prioritizing value-based services over cost-driven outcomes.

8 Section 2. Amend § 9302, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
9 insertions as shown by underline as follows and by redesignating accordingly:

10 § 9302. Definitions.

11 ~~The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in~~
12 ~~this section, except where the context indicates a different meaning~~ As used in this chapter:

13 (1) ~~“Advisory Board” shall mean~~ means the Delaware Health Resources ~~Board established pursuant to § 9303~~
14 ~~of this title.~~ Advisory Board established under this chapter.

15 (2) ~~“Bureau” shall mean the Bureau of Health Planning and Resources Management within the Department of~~
16 ~~Health and Social Services.~~ [Repealed].

17 (3) “Application” means the formal, written request for a certificate of need.

18 (4) “Applicant” means the person who submits an application under this chapter.

19 (3) (5) ~~“Certificate of Public Review” shall mean~~ need” means the written approval of an application to
20 undertake an activity subject to review ~~as described in~~ under § 9304 of this title.

21 (4) “Commission” means the Delaware Health Care Commission.

22 (5) “DHIN” means the Delaware Health Information Network.

23 (6) “Department” means the Department of Health and Social Services.

24 (7) “Executive Director” means the Executive Director of the Delaware Health Care Commission.

25 (8) “Freestanding acute inpatient rehabilitation hospital” means a facility that satisfies, or is expected by the
26 person who will construct, develop, or establish the facility to satisfy, the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 412.23(b); if the
27 facility is not paid under the prospective payment system specified in 42 C.F.R. § 412.1(a)(3) within 24 months after
28 accepting its first patient, the facility is not a freestanding acute inpatient rehabilitation hospital under this paragraph.

29 (9) “Freestanding birthing center” means a facility licensed as a freestanding birthing center as defined in §
30 122 of this title.

31 (10) “Freestanding emergency department” means a facility licensed as a freestanding emergency department
32 as defined in § 122 of this title.

33 (11) “Freestanding surgical center” means a facility licensed as a freestanding surgical center as defined in §
34 122 of this title and in which the expected duration of services would not exceed 23 hours 59 minutes following an
35 admission.

36 (4) (12)a. “Health-care facility” shall include means any of the following:

37 1. A hospital, ~~nursing home~~ long-term care facility, freestanding birthing center, freestanding
38 surgical center, freestanding acute inpatient rehabilitation hospital, ~~and or~~ freestanding emergency center,
39 ~~whether or not~~ department, regardless of being any of the following:

40 A. licensed ~~Licensed~~ or required to be licensed by the State, ~~this State~~.

41 B. ~~whether operated~~ Operated for profit or ~~nonprofit~~ nonprofit.

42 C. ~~and whether privately~~ Privately owned or operated or owned or operated by a unit of State or
43 local government.

44 2. ~~The term also includes continual care communities and any other nontraditional, long-term care~~
45 ~~facilities identified by~~ A continual care community or another nontraditional, long-term care facility that the
46 Department of Health and Social Services or the Delaware Health Care Commission identifies.

47 b. The term does not include “Health-care facility” does not mean any of the following:

48 1. A Christian Science ~~sanatoriums~~ sanitorium operated or listed and certified by the First Church of
49 Christ ~~Christ~~ Scientist, Boston, Massachusetts.

50 2. ~~The term shall not include any~~ A physician’s office, whether an individual or group ~~practice, any~~
51 ~~practice; an independent clinical laboratory or any laboratory; or a radiology laboratory.~~

52 ~~3. The term shall also not include the office of any other~~ An office of another licensed health-care
53 provider, ~~including, but not limited to,~~ including a physical therapist, dentist, physician assistant, podiatrist,
54 chiropractor, an independently practicing nurse or nurse practitioner, optometrist, ~~pharmacist~~ pharmacist, or
55 psychologist.

56 ~~4. The term also shall not include any~~ A dispensary or first aid station located within a business or
57 industrial establishment maintained solely for the use of the business's or establishment's employees,
58 ~~provided that the facility~~ if the dispensary or first aid station does not contain inpatient beds, beds.

59 ~~5. nor shall it apply to any~~ A first aid station or dispensary or infirmary offering non-acute services
60 exclusively for use by students and employees of a school or university or by inmates and employees of a
61 prison, ~~provided that~~ if the services delivered ~~therein~~ are not the substantial equivalent of hospital services in
62 the same area or community. ~~Further:~~

63 a. ~~"Freestanding acute inpatient rehabilitation hospital"~~ shall mean a facility that satisfies, or is expected
64 by the person who will construct, develop or establish the facility to satisfy, the requirements of 42 C.F.R. §
65 412.23(b); ~~provided that, if such facility is not paid under the prospective payment system specified in 42 C.F.R. §~~
66 412.1(a)(3) within 24 months after accepting its first patient, then it shall not be considered a freestanding acute
67 inpatient rehabilitation hospital under this section.

68 b. ~~"Freestanding birthing center"~~ shall mean any facility licensed as such pursuant to Chapter 1 of this
69 title and more particularly in the State Board of Health Regulations.

70 e. ~~"Freestanding emergency center"~~ shall mean any facility licensed as such pursuant to Chapter 1 of this
71 title and more particularly § 52 of the State Board of Health Regulations.

72 d. ~~"Freestanding surgical center"~~ shall mean any facility licensed as such pursuant to Chapter 1 of this
73 title and more particularly in the State Board of Health Regulations.

74 e. ~~"Hospital"~~ shall mean any nonfederal facility licensed as such pursuant to Chapter 10 of this title and
75 more particularly § 50 of the State Board of Health Regulations.

76 f. ~~"Nursing home"~~ shall mean any nonfederal facility licensed as such pursuant to Chapter 11 of this title
77 and more particularly § 57 (Skilled care) and § 58 (Intermediate care) of the State Board of Health Regulations.

78 ~~(5)~~ (13) "Health-care resources" means materials, personnel, facilities, funds, or other resources that can be
79 used for providing health-care services.

80 ~~(14) “Health services” shall mean clinically related (i.e., diagnostic, curative or rehabilitative) “Health-care~~
81 ~~services” means services provided in or through health-care facilities. a health-care facility and that are clinically~~
82 ~~related, such as diagnostic, curative, or rehabilitative services.~~

83 (15) “Hospital” means a nonfederal facility licensed as a hospital as defined in §1001 of this title.

84 (16)a. “Long-term care facility” means a nonfederal facility that is licensed as a long-term care facility is
85 defined in § 1102 of this title and is a residential facility that provides shelter and food to more than 1 individual who
86 meets all of the following:

87 1. Because of the individual’s physical or mental condition, requires a level of care and services
88 suitable to the individual’s needs to contribute to the individual’s health, comfort, or welfare.

89 2. Is not related within the second degree of consanguinity to the facility’s controlling person.

90 b. “Long-term care facility” includes a nursing facility and an intermediate care facility for persons with
91 intellectual disabilities, as each of those terms is defined in § 1102 of this title.

92 ~~(6) (17) “Major medical equipment” shall mean a single unit of medical equipment or a single system of~~
93 ~~components with related functions which is used for the diagnosis or treatment of patients and which:~~

94 ~~a. Entails a capital expenditure as set forth in this chapter which exceeds \$5,800,000 or some greater~~
95 ~~amount which has been designated by the Board following an annual adjustment for inflation using an annual~~
96 ~~inflation index determined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics;~~

97 ~~b. Represents medical technology which is not yet available in Delaware; or~~

98 ~~c. Represents medical technology which has been designated by the Board as being subject to review.~~

99 ~~The Board may exempt from review a capital expenditure used to acquire major medical equipment which~~
100 ~~represents medical technology which is not yet available in Delaware. A notice of intent filed pursuant to § 9305 of this~~
101 ~~title along with any other information deemed necessary by the Board shall provide the basis for exempting such a capital~~
102 ~~expenditure from review. [Repealed.]~~

103 ~~(7) (18) “Person” shall mean an individual, a trust or estate, a partnership, a corporation (including~~
104 ~~associations, joint stock companies and insurance companies), a state or political subdivision or instrumentality~~
105 ~~(including a municipal corporation) of a state. “Person” means as defined in § 302 of Title 1, and includes a trust or~~
106 ~~estate; an insurance company; a state; and a political subdivision or instrumentality of a state, including a municipal~~
107 ~~corporation.~~

108 (19) “Proposed project” means the enterprise for which an application for a certificate of need is filed.

109 (20) “Review” means the assessment of an application for a certificate of need.

110 Section 3. Amend § 9303, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
111 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

112 § 9303. Delaware Health Resources Advisory Board.

113 (a) ~~There is hereby established a Delaware Health Resources~~ The Advisory Board ~~to foster~~ is established for the
114 purpose of advising the Executive Director regarding both of the following:

115 (1) ~~the~~ The cost-effective and efficient use of health-care ~~resources~~ resources.

116 (2) ~~and the~~ The availability of and access to high quality and appropriate health-care services.

117 (b) Advisory Board membership; terms; quorum; compensation; staffing. ~~The Board shall consist of a Chair, a~~
118 ~~Vice Chair and 13 other members, all of which shall be appointed by the Governor. Appointments shall be for 3-year terms,~~
119 ~~provided that the terms of newly appointed members will be staggered so that no more than 5 appointments shall expire~~
120 ~~annually. The Governor may appoint members for terms of less than 3 years to ensure that the board members' terms expire~~
121 ~~on a staggered basis. The membership shall be representative of all counties in the State. In addition to the Chair and the~~
122 ~~Vice Chair, the membership shall consist of 1 representative of the Delaware Health Care Commission; 1 representative~~
123 ~~from the Department of Health and Social Services recommended by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Social~~
124 ~~Services; 1 representative of labor; 1 representative of the health insurance industry; 1 representative with knowledge and~~
125 ~~professional experience in health care administration; 1 representative licensed to practice medicine in Delaware; 1~~
126 ~~representative with knowledge and professional experience in long term care administration; 1 representative of a provider~~
127 ~~group other than hospitals, nursing homes or physicians; 1 representative involved in purchasing health care coverage on~~
128 ~~behalf of State employees; 1 other representative involved in purchasing health care coverage for employers with more than~~
129 ~~200 employees; and 4 representatives of the public at large. Public members may include but not be limited to~~
130 ~~representative from business, educational and nonprofit organizations. The Chair shall be an at-large position and shall be~~
131 ~~appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Governor. The Governor shall designate a Vice Chair from among the~~
132 ~~members of the Board who shall serve in this capacity at the pleasure of the Governor. The Delaware Healthcare~~
133 ~~Association, the Medical Society of Delaware, the Delaware Health Care Facilities Association, the Delaware State~~
134 ~~Chamber of Commerce, and other interested organizations may submit nonbinding recommendations to aid the Governor in~~
135 ~~making appointments to the Board. Any vacancy shall be filled by the Governor for the balance of the unexpired term. A~~
136 ~~quorum shall consist of at least 50% of the membership. Members of the Board shall serve without compensation, except~~
137 ~~that they may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary expenses incident to their duties, to the extent that funds are~~
138 ~~available and the expenditures are in accordance with state laws.~~

139 (1) The Advisory Board is composed of 10 members, as follows:

140 a. Seven voting members that the Governor appoints, as follows:

141 1. One member who represents labor.

142 2. One member who represents the health insurance industry.

143 3. One member who has professional experience in health-care economic and policy matters.

144 4. One member who is licensed to practice medicine in Delaware.

145 5. One member who has professional experience in long-term care administration.

146 6. One member who represents a provider group other than a hospital, long-term care facility, or

147 physician.

148 7. One member who is involved in purchasing health-care coverage on behalf of State employees.

149 b. Three ex officio, nonvoting members, each of whom may select a designee from the organization that

150 the member represents to serve in the member's stead and at the member's pleasure:

151 1. The Executive Director of the Delaware Health Care Commission.

152 2. The Director of the Office of Health Facilities Licensing and Certification.

153 3. The Director of the Office of Healthcare Provider Resources, Division of Public Health.

154 (2) Membership must represent all 3 counties in this State.

155 (3) Each voting member is appointed for a term of 3 years. The Governor may appoint a member for a term of

156 less than 3 years to ensure that members' terms expire on a staggered basis. The Governor shall fill a vacancy by

157 appointing a member for the balance of the unexpired term.

158 (4) A majority of voting members must be present at an Advisory Board meeting in order to have a quorum

159 and conduct official business. None of the following are counted for the purposes of establishing quorum:

160 a. A vacancy on the Advisory Board.

161 b. A member's recusal from voting on a matter.

162 c. An ex officio, nonvoting member.

163 (5) The Advisory Board shall annually elect a chair and vice chair from among its members. An ex officio

164 member may not serve as chair or vice chair.

165 (6) The Delaware Healthcare Association, Medical Society of Delaware, Delaware Health Care Facilities

166 Association, Delaware State Chamber of Commerce, and another interested organization may provide a nonbinding

167 recommendation that the Governor may use in considering an appointment to the Advisory Board.

168 (7) A member receives no compensation but may be reimbursed for the member's actual and necessary
169 expenses incurred in the performance of the member's official duties, to the extent that funds are available and the
170 expenditure is in accordance with state law.

171 (c) ~~The Board is an independent public instrumentality. For administrative and budgetary purposes only, the Board~~
172 ~~shall be placed within the Department of Health and Social Services, Office of the Secretary. The Delaware Health~~
173 ~~Resources Board shall function in cooperation with the Delaware Health Care Commission, as well as other state health~~
174 ~~policy activities. Staff support for the Board shall be provided by the Delaware Health Care Commission and the Office of~~
175 ~~the Secretary, Department of Health and Social Services. The Department, through the Office of the Secretary, provides the~~
176 Advisory Board with administrative, budgetary, and staff support. The Advisory Board functions in cooperation with the
177 Department, Commission, and other state health policy activities.

178 (d) ~~The duties and responsibilities of the Board shall include, but not be limited to, Advisory Board's duties and~~
179 responsibilities include all of the following:

180 (1) ~~Develop a Health Resources Management Plan which shall assess the supply of health care resources,~~
181 ~~particularly facilities and medical technologies, and the need for such resources. Essential aspects of the plan shall~~
182 ~~include a statement of principles to guide the allocation of resources, as well as rules and regulations which shall be~~
183 ~~formulated for use in reviewing Certificate of Public Review applications. Any revision of the Health Resources~~
184 ~~Management Plan shall be done in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act (Chapter 101~~
185 ~~of Title 29). The Board shall also be required to conduct a public hearing. Also, prior to adoption, the plan or revision~~
186 ~~of the plan shall be submitted to the Delaware Health Care Commission for review and approval. Upon receiving~~
187 ~~written approval from the Commission, the plan or revision shall be submitted to the Secretary, Department of Health~~
188 ~~and Social Services. The plan or revision shall become effective upon the written approval of the Secretary;~~
189 [Repealed.]

190 (2) ~~Review Certificate of Public Review applications filed pursuant to this chapter and make decisions on~~
191 ~~same. Decisions and advise the Executive Director whether to approve or deny an application for a certificate of need~~
192 ~~filed under this chapter. The Advisory Board must base its findings and advice on the criteria under § 9306 of this title~~
193 ~~and shall reflect the importance of assuring that health-care developments do not negatively affect the quality of health~~
194 ~~care or threaten the ability of a health-care facilities facility to provide services to the medically indigent. Decisions can~~
195 ~~be conditional but the conditions~~ A finding to approve an application may be conditional, but each condition must be
196 related to the specific project in question; to which the application relates. The Executive Director shall issue the final
197 decision whether to approve an application, under § 9305(c)(7) of this chapter.

198 (3) ~~Gather and analyze data and information needed to carry out its responsibilities. Identify the kinds of data~~
199 ~~which are not available so that efforts can be made to assure that legitimate data needs can be met in the future;~~
200 [Repealed.]

201 (4) ~~Address a specific health-care issues as requested by issue that the Governor or the General Assembly;~~
202 Assembly may request.

203 (5) Adopt bylaws as necessary for conducting its affairs. ~~Board members shall~~ A member must comply with
204 ~~the provisions of Chapter 58 of Title 29 (State Ethics Code) and the Board shall operate in accordance with Chapter~~
205 ~~100 of Title 29 (Freedom of Information Act); and Act).~~

206 (6) Coordinate activities with the ~~Delaware Health Care Commission, the Department of Health and Social~~
207 ~~Services and other groups as the Department, or another group as appropriate or that the Department Secretary~~
208 requests.

209 (7) Provide advice to the Department regarding the production of the biennial state-wide health-care facility
210 utilization study under § 9312 of this title.

211 (e) The Governor may ~~at any time, after notice and hearing, remove any board~~ remove an Advisory Board member
212 for gross inefficiency, neglect of duty, malfeasance, ~~misfeasance~~ misfeasance, or nonfeasance in office. A member ~~shall be~~
213 is deemed in neglect of duty if ~~they are~~ the member is absent from 3 consecutive ~~board~~ Advisory Board meetings without
214 good cause or if ~~they attend~~ the member attends less than 50% of ~~board~~ regular Advisory Board meetings in a calendar
215 year. The Governor may consider the member to have resigned and may accept the member's resignation.

216 Section 4. Amend § 9304, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
217 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

218 § 9304. ~~Activities~~ Certificate of need required; activity subject to review ~~[Effective Dec. 31, 2020].~~

219 (a) ~~Any~~ A person must obtain a ~~Certificate of Public Review~~ certificate of need prior to undertaking any of the
220 following activities:

221 (1) The construction, development or other establishment of a health-care ~~facility~~ facility, or the ~~for-profit~~
222 acquisition of a nonprofit health-care ~~facility;~~ facility.

223 (2) ~~Any~~ a. An expenditure by or on behalf of a health-care facility in excess of ~~\$5.8~~ \$8 million, or some
224 greater amount ~~which has been designated by the Board~~ designates following an annual adjustment for inflation using
225 an annual inflation index determined by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, ~~is a capital~~
226 ~~expenditure.~~ for the expansion, modification, development, or alteration of a health-care facility.

227 b. A capital expenditure for purposes of constructing, ~~developing~~ developing, or otherwise establishing a
228 medical office building ~~shall not be~~ is not subject to review under this chapter.

229 c. When a person makes an acquisition by or on behalf of a health-care facility under lease or comparable
230 arrangement, or through donation which would have required review if the acquisition had been by purchase, ~~such~~
231 the acquisition shall be deemed is a capital expenditure subject to review.

232 d. The ~~Board~~ Executive Director may exempt from review ~~a capital expenditures when determined to be~~
233 expenditure when the Executive Director determines the expenditure is necessary for maintaining the physical
234 structure of a facility and not related to direct patient care. A notice of intent filed ~~pursuant to~~ under § 9305 of this
235 title, along with any other information ~~deemed necessary by the Board, shall provide~~ the Executive Director deems
236 is necessary, provides the basis for exempting ~~such capital expenditures from review; a capital expenditure from~~
237 review.

238 (3) A change in bed capacity of a health-care facility which increases the total number of ~~beds~~ beds,
239 distributes beds among various categories, or relocates ~~such~~ the beds from 1 physical facility or site to ~~another~~
240 another, by more than 10 beds or more than ~~10 percent~~ 10% of total licensed bed capacity, whichever is less, over a 2-
241 year ~~period; period.~~

242 (4) ~~The acquisition of major medical equipment, whether or not by a health care facility and whether or not~~
243 ~~the acquisition is through a capital expenditure, an operating expense or a donation. The replacement of major medical~~
244 ~~equipment with similar equipment shall not be subject to review under this chapter. In the case of major medical~~
245 ~~equipment acquired by an entity outside of Delaware, the use of that major medical equipment within Delaware,~~
246 ~~whether or not on a mobile basis, is subject to review under this chapter. Major medical equipment which is acquired~~
247 ~~for use in a freestanding acute inpatient rehabilitation hospital, as defined in § 9302(4) of this title, a dispensary or first~~
248 ~~aid station located within a business or industrial establishment maintained solely for the use of employees or in a first~~
249 ~~aid station, dispensary or infirmary offering services exclusively for use by students and employees of a school or~~
250 ~~university or by inmates and employees of a prison is not subject to review. [Repealed.]~~

251 (5) ~~[Expired].~~

252 (b) ~~[Expired].~~

253 Section 5. Amend § 9305, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
254 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

255 § 9305. ~~Procedures for review.~~ Regulations; forms; procedures for review; notice of intent; reconsideration;
256 appeal; fees.

257 (a) The Department may promulgate rules and regulations to implement this section.

258 (b) The Department shall develop a form or multiple forms for an application under this chapter. An application
259 form must include each review consideration under § 9306 of this title. The Department shall make each form of
260 application available on the Department's website.

261 (c) ~~Reviews~~ A review under this chapter shall ~~must~~ be conducted ~~in accordance with~~ under the following
262 procedures:

263 (1) ~~Notices~~ a. Notice of intent. At least 30 days but not more than 180 days ~~prior to~~ before submitting an
264 application for review under this chapter, ~~applicants~~ an applicant shall submit to the ~~Bureau~~ Department a notice of
265 intent in ~~such form as may be determined by the Board~~ a form that the Department determines to cover the scope and
266 nature of the proposed project. An application may be submitted less than 30 days from submitting the notice of intent
267 only with the Executive Director's written ~~approval of the Board.~~ approval.

268 b. A notice of intent expires and is rendered invalid if ~~no subsequent~~ an application for review is not
269 submitted to the ~~Board~~ Executive Director within 180 days following the date on which the notice of intent is
270 submitted.

271 c. An applicant shall publish an advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in the defined service
272 area which briefly describes the proposed project, the location of the services, and a statement that a notice of
273 intent to apply for a certificate of need will be filed with the Department.

274 d. An applicant shall provide a copy of the published advertisement under paragraph (c)(1)c. of this
275 section with the applicant's notice of intent.

276 e. The Department shall publish each notice of intent on the Department's website.

277 (2) ~~Applications for review.~~ Application forms will be developed by the Board and may vary according to the
278 nature of the application. Application for certificate of need. An applicant must submit a complete application with all
279 documentation that the Department requests.

280 (3) ~~Deadlines and time limitations.~~ Deadline and time limitation.

281 a. Upon receipt of an application under this chapter, the ~~Bureau shall have~~ Department has a maximum of
282 15 business days to notify the applicant as to whether the application is considered complete. ~~If complete, written~~

283 notification in accordance with paragraph (4) of this section will be provided. If incomplete, the applicant will be
284 notified in writing of such determination and will be advised of what additional information is required to make
285 the application complete. When the additional information is received, the Bureau again has a maximum of 15
286 business days to determine whether the application is complete. If complete, the Department shall provide the
287 applicant with written notification under paragraph (c)(4) of this section. The Department shall notify the applicant
288 in writing if the Department determines that the application is incomplete. The same steps shall must be taken as
289 with the initial submission each time that additional information is required.

290 b. Except as provided below, in paragraph (c)(3)c. of this section, the Department shall complete a review
291 of an application shall take no longer than 90 days from the date of notification as covered under paragraph (c)(4)
292 of this section. If a public hearing is requested under paragraph (6) of this section, the maximum review period
293 will be extended to 120 days from the date of notification. Within 30 days from the date of notification (60 days if
294 a public hearing is requested), notification, the Board Department may extend the maximum review period up to
295 180 days from the date of notification. Such extensions shall be invoked The Department may grant an extension
296 only as necessary to allow the development of appropriate review criteria Department staff to conduct the
297 necessary research under paragraph (c)(5) or other guidance when these are if research or guidance is lacking or to
298 facilitate the simultaneous review of similar applications. The maximum review period can also be extended as
299 mutually agreed to in writing by the Board and the applicant. the Department and applicant mutually agree, in
300 writing.

301 c. Abbreviated application. In the case of a project required to remedy an emergency situation which
302 threatens the safety of patients or the ability of ~~the health~~ a health-care facility to remain in operation, an
303 abbreviated application shall must be submitted in such the format as the ~~Board~~ Department prescribes. As quickly
304 as possible, but within 72 hours after receipt of the abbreviated application, the ~~Board~~ Executive Director shall
305 ~~render a decision as to~~ determine, without input from the Advisory Board, whether ~~or not~~ the project shall be is
306 treated as an emergency and whether ~~or not~~ the abbreviated application shall be is approved. ~~The Chair or Vice~~
307 ~~Chair of the Board shall be authorized to render such decision and shall have discretion as to the decision making~~
308 ~~process.~~

309 (4) Agency Executive Director review; notification.

310 a. Within 5 working days of determining that an application under this chapter is complete, the ~~Bureau~~
311 Department shall provide written notification of the beginning of a review. ~~Such notification shall be sent directly~~
312 ~~to all health care facilities in the State and to others who request direct notification. The Department shall directly~~

313 notify each health-care facility in this State of the review. The Department shall also directly notify another
314 person, if any, who requests notification.

315 b. A notice shall also appear in a newspaper of general circulation which shall serve as written
316 notification to the general public. The date of notification is the date on which such notice appears in the
317 newspaper. The notification shall identify the applicant, indicate the nature of the application, specify the period
318 during which a public hearing in the course of the review as covered in paragraph (6) of this section may be
319 requested, and indicate the manner in which notice will be provided of the time and place of any hearing so
320 requested. The Department shall publish on the Department's website a notice of the review.

321 (5) Findings. Department staff analysis, findings, and report; public comment.

322 a. Department staff shall do all of the following:

323 1. Use the information provided in the application to prepare an analysis of the proposed project,
324 including information on the proposed project and a description of the applicant's plan.

325 2. Analyze the proposed project under the review considerations under § 9306 of this title.

326 3. Complete a report of staff's analysis no later than 45 days after the Department provides written
327 notification of the beginning of a review under paragraph (c)(4)a. of this section.

328 b. Upon completion of a review under this chapter, and within the time frames outlined in paragraph (3)
329 of this section, the Bureau shall notify in writing the applicant and anyone else upon request as to the Board's
330 decision, including the basis on which the decision was made. Decisions can be conditional, but the conditions
331 must be related to the specific project in question. Upon completion of the staff report under this section, the
332 Department shall provide notification to the applicant that the staff report is complete and an electronic copy of the
333 report. The Department shall also provide notification and an electronic copy of the report to another person, if
334 any, who requests direct notification. The Department shall publish the staff report on the Department's website,
335 along with instructions, including the deadline, for the public to provide written public comment on the report.

336 c. Written public comment may be provided on each review for 30 calendar days from the date the staff
337 report is published on the Department's website.

338 (6) Advisory Board meeting and findings. Public hearing in the course of review. Within 10 days after the
339 date of notification as described in paragraph (4) of this section, a public hearing in the course of review may be
340 requested in writing by any person. The Board shall provide for a public hearing if requested and shall provide
341 notification of the time and place for such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation. The public hearing shall be

342 held not less than 14 days after such notice appears in the newspaper. Fees shall not be imposed for such hearings. An
343 opportunity must be provided for any person to present testimony.

344 a. Advisory Board meeting. No later than 30 days after the Department publishes the Department staff
345 report on the Department's website, the Advisory Board shall hold an initial meeting to receive an overview from
346 the applicant of the proposed project, an overview from Department staff of the staff's analysis and report, and
347 public comment.

348 1. The Department shall provide electronically the Advisory Board with written public comment
349 received prior to the Advisory Board's initial meeting. Only the Executive Director may consider written
350 public comment submitted after the Advisory Board's initial meeting.

351 2. The Advisory Board may hold 1 additional meeting after the initial meeting to review an
352 application. The additional meeting must be held within the 30-day written public comment period under
353 paragraph (c)(5)c. of this section. The meetings may be scheduled consecutively.

354 3. At an Advisory Board meeting, the Advisory Board shall discuss the application at issue and the
355 related staff report. At the Advisory Board's request, the applicant may provide clarification on a matter
356 relating to the application, proposed project, or staff report.

357 b. Determination. The Advisory Board shall vote at the final meeting held on the application whether to
358 advise the Executive Director to approve the application. The Advisory Board shall provide the Executive Director
359 with the result of the vote within 7 calendar days of the vote. The Department shall publish on the Department's
360 website the result of the Advisory Board's vote.

361 (7) ~~Administrative reconsideration Procedure for Board.~~ Executive Director's decision; administrative
362 reconsideration.

363 a. The Executive Director shall make the decision whether to approve an application for a proposed
364 project, no later than 30 days after the closing of the written public comment period under paragraph (c)(5)c. of
365 this section. In making a decision, the Executive Director shall consider all of the following:

366 1. The Advisory Board's findings under paragraph (c)(6) of this section.

367 2. The Department staff's report under paragraph (c)(5) of this section.

368 3. All materials that the applicant submits.

369 4. Whether to make the decision conditional. Each condition must be related to the proposed project
370 at issue.

371 b. The Department shall notify the applicant, and others who request to be notified, in writing of the
372 Executive Director's decision and the reasoning for the decision. The Department shall publish the decision and
373 reasoning on the Department's website.

374 c. Administrative reconsideration.

375 1. ~~Any A~~ person may, for a good cause shown, request in writing a public hearing ~~for purposes of~~
376 ~~reconsideration of a Board~~ to reconsider the Executive Director's decision rendered under paragraph (5) (c)(7)
377 of this section. The Board Department may not impose fees for such a hearing a fee for a hearing under this
378 paragraph. For purposes of this paragraph, a request for a public hearing shall be deemed by the Board to have
379 shown good cause if it: A request for a public hearing under this paragraph is made with good cause shown if
380 the person requesting the hearing meets either of the following criteria:

381 a. A. Does both of the following:

382 I. Presents newly discovered, significant, and relevant information that was not previously
383 available or considered by the Board; and the Executive Director did not previously consider.

384 b. II. Demonstrates that there have been significant changes in factors or circumstances that
385 the Executive Director relied upon by the Board in reaching its decision; or a decision.

386 e. B. Demonstrates that the Board has Executive Director materially failed to follow its the
387 Department's adopted procedures in reaching its decision.

388 2. A person making a request for such a hearing under this paragraph (c)(7)c. must be received
389 submit the request within 10 days of the Executive Director's decision. The hearing shall commence
390 Department shall schedule a hearing to take place within 45 days of receiving the request.

391 3. ~~Notice of such public hearing shall be sent, not less than 15 days prior to the date of the hearing, to~~
392 ~~the person requesting the hearing and to the applicant, and shall be sent to others upon request. The Executive~~
393 ~~Director shall provide notice for a public hearing under this paragraph (c)(7)c. not less than 15 days prior to~~
394 ~~the date of the hearing. The notice must be provided to the person requesting the hearing, the applicant for the~~
395 ~~proposed project, and others who requested to be noticed.~~

396 4. Following completion of the hearing, the Board Executive Director shall, within 45 days, issue its
397 a written decision which shall set forth must include the findings of fact and conclusion of law upon which its
398 the decision is based.

399 (8) ~~Appeal Applicant.~~ Judicial appeal.

400 a. Any of the following may be appealed to the Superior Court:

401 1. A decision of the Board Executive Director following review of an application pursuant to under
402 paragraph (c)(5) of this section, section.

403 2. an An administrative reconsideration pursuant to under paragraph (c)(7) of this section, or section.

404 3. the The denial of a request for extension of a Certificate of Public Review pursuant to certificate of
405 need under § 9307 of this title, title.

406 b. may be appealed within 30 days to the Superior Court. An appeal under this paragraph (c)(8) of this
407 section must be filed within 30 days of the occurrence of the decision being appealed.

408 c. Such appeal shall An appeal under this paragraph must be on the record.

409 (9) Access by public. The Department shall provide the general public shall be provided with access to all
410 applications each application reviewed under this chapter and to all other written materials pertinent to any a review of
411 an application.

412 (10)a. Filing fees. Within 5 working days of determining that an application under this chapter is complete,
413 the Bureau Department shall notify the applicant of any the filing fee due. due, if any.

414 b. Filing fees shall The filing fee for an application must be determined from the following table:

Capital Expenditure	Fee
Less than \$500,000	\$100
\$500,000 to \$999,999	\$750
\$1,000,000 to \$4,999,999	\$3,000
\$5,000,000 to \$9,999,999	\$7,500
\$10,000,000 and over	\$10,000

421 c. Filing fees shall be The filing fee is due 30 days after the date of notification of the beginning of review as
422 covered under paragraph (4) under paragraph (c)(4) of this section. This The Executive Director may extend the due date
423 may be extended up to 10 additional days at the discretion of the Bureau. days.

424 d. Applications An application for which a filing fees have fee has not been paid within this time frame shall be by
425 the due date or extended due date is considered to be withdrawn.

426 e. All filing fees shall Each filing fee must be deposited in the General Fund.

427 Section 6. Amend § 9306, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
428 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

429 § 9306. Review considerations.

430 In conducting ~~reviews~~ a review of an application under this chapter, the Advisory Board and Executive Director
431 shall consider ~~as appropriate~~ at least all of the following:

432 (1) ~~The relationship of the proposal to the Health Resources Management Plan adopted pursuant to § 9303 of~~
433 ~~this title. Prior to adoption of a Health Resources Management Plan by the Board, the State health plan last in use by~~
434 ~~the Health Resources Management Council shall comprise such plan; [Repealed.]~~

435 (2) The need of the population for the proposed ~~project~~; project. To determine the need, the applicant for the
436 certificate shall provide, and the Advisory Board and Executive Director shall consider, all of the following:

437 a. A detailed narrative that supplies rationale for the proposed project and includes the defined service
438 area of the project.

439 b. Facts demonstrating a clear public need for the proposed project, including demographic, incidence,
440 prevalence, outcomes, and survival data of the population to be served by the project.

441 c. At the Advisory Board's or Executive Director's request, the applicant's calculation and supply of
442 mathematical need calculations.

443 1. The applicant shall obtain population estimates and projections from the Delaware Population
444 Consortium and the U.S. Census Bureau.

445 2. The Advisory Board and Executive Director shall use mathematical need calculations to ensure
446 that the review is multi-faceted.

447 d. Supporting documents, such as articles, scientific studies, or reports, that corroborate statements made
448 in the application to justify the need for the proposed project. The applicant must include a brief explanation of the
449 relevance of each document provided under this paragraph.

450 e. Quantitative or qualitative supporting data, such as improvements to accessibility, availability, recent
451 technology, advances in medical science, or morbidity or mortality data if the applicant anticipates that the
452 proposed project will enhance the health status of the population to be served by the project.

453 (3) Information on alternatives, including both of the following:

454 a. The availability of less costly ~~and/or~~ or more effective alternatives to the ~~proposal~~ proposed project,
455 including alternatives involving the use of resources located outside the ~~State~~; State.

456 b. The applicant's information about alternative providers of the proposed project, referencing the
457 specific providers that currently offer the services included in the project and the impact of those providers. The
458 applicant must include financial information showing whether the alternative providers are costly in the delivery of
459 the services.

460 (4)a. The relationship of the ~~proposal~~ proposed project to the existing health-care delivery system; system and
461 the predicted effect on the quality and access of health care in the defined service area.

462 b. The proposed project's relevance to access and continuity of care, chronic disease management, care
463 coordination, use of telemedicine and health information technology, affiliation with the Delaware Health
464 Information Network, and other strategies to facilitate Delaware's transition to value-based payment models to
465 improve overall health outcomes.

466 1. An applicant should not propose a project that reflects or promotes incentives for overuse,
467 medically unnecessary care, or low-value care.

468 2. A proposed project should support a managed coordinated approach to serve the health-care needs
469 of the defined service area.

470 3. A proposed project that is intended to establish a new health-care facility must document that the
471 applicant has done or will do each of the following:

472 A. Sign a participation agreement with DHIN.

473 B. Submit service records to the DHIN.

474 C. Access data and information from DHIN for coordination purposes.

475 c. The applicant's plan for care of a patient without private insurance coverage.

476 d. The applicant's plan for care of medically underserved populations within the defined service area.

477 e. The applicant's past and projected health-care services to Medicaid patients and the medically indigent,
478 highlighting change in the access to services for Medicaid recipients and the medically indigent.

479 f. The applicant's plan for prevention activities such as early detection and the promotion of healthy
480 lifestyles which are part of Delaware's statewide health-care reform efforts essential to an effective health-care
481 system, including a number of opportunities to improve the health status of Delawareans.

482 (5) The immediate and long-term viability of the ~~proposal~~ proposed project in terms of the applicant's access
483 to financial, ~~management~~ management, and other necessary ~~resources~~; resources.

484 a. The applicant must satisfactorily demonstrate the financial feasibility of the proposed project and
485 included in the application a copy of study findings if a financial feasibility study was performed.

486 b. The applicant must include in the application proof of each funding or financing source of the proposed
487 project, including applicable details such as the dollar amount of each, interest rate, term, monthly payment,
488 pledge, or funds received to date, and letters of interest or approval from a lending institution.

489 (6) ~~The anticipated~~ predicted effect of the ~~proposal~~ proposed project on the costs of and charges for health
490 care, and care. The applicant must satisfactorily show all of the following:

491 a. How the proposed project will affect the financial strength of the health-care system in the defined
492 service area.

493 b. How the proposed project will improve cost-effectiveness of the health-care system in the defined
494 service area.

495 c. How the proposed project will affect cost and charges to consumers for health-care services in the
496 defined service area.

497 (7) ~~The anticipated effect of the proposal on the quality of health care. [Repealed.]~~

498 (8) Supplemental information from the applicant showing the applicant's ability to support the proposed
499 project and the applicant's commitment to appropriately balance consideration of access, cost, and quality of care
500 issues, including both of the following:

501 a. The applicant's relevant certification and accreditation statuses, including those from Medicare,
502 Medicaid, Joint Commission, or another accrediting organization.

503 b. A copy of each letter the applicant has received, if any, in support of the proposed project.

504 Section 7. Amend § 9307, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
505 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

506 § 9307. Period of effectiveness of ~~Certificate of Public Review~~ certificate of need.

507 (a) ~~A Certificate of Public Review shall be valid for 1 year from the date such approval was granted. A certificate~~
508 of need is valid for 1 year from the date the certificate is approved.

509 (b) (1) ~~At least 30 days prior to the expiration of the Certificate of Public Review, the applicant~~ certificate of need,
510 the holder of the certificate shall inform the Board Executive Director in writing of the project's status. The Board
511 Executive Director shall determine if sufficient progress has been made for the Certificate of Public Review certificate of
512 need to continue in effect. If sufficient progress has not been made, the applicant holder may request a 6-month extension in
513 writing, to the Board, that a 6-month extension be granted Executive Director. The Board Executive Director shall either
514 allow the certificate to expire or grant such the extension. A The Executive Director's decision by the Board to deny an
515 extension may be appealed pursuant to under § 9305(8) of this title.

516 (2) The Department shall publish on its website each project status update, including extension requests and
517 the Executive Director's decision of each request.

518 Section 8. Amend § 9308, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
519 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

520 § 9308. Sanctions.

521 (a) ~~Any person undertaking an activity subject to review as described in § 9304 of this title, without first being~~
522 ~~issued a Certificate of Public Review for that activity, shall have its license or other authority to operate denied, revoked or~~
523 ~~restricted as deemed appropriate by the responsible licensing or authorizing agency of the State and an order in writing to~~
524 ~~such effect shall be issued by that licensing or authorizing agency. The licensing or authorizing agency of the State that is~~
525 responsible for a person who undertakes an activity that is subject to review under § 9304 of this title without first being
526 issued a certificate of need shall deny, revoke, or restrict the person's license or other authority. The licensing or authority
527 agency shall issue a written order establishing the denial, revocation, or restriction of the license or other authority.

528 (b) In addition to subsection (a) of this section, the ~~Board~~ Executive Director or ~~any an~~ an adversely affected ~~health~~
529 ~~care~~ health-care facility may maintain a civil action in the Court of Chancery to restrain or prohibit ~~any a~~ a person from
530 undertaking an activity subject to review ~~as described in~~ under § 9304 of this title without first being issued a ~~Certificate of~~
531 ~~Public Review~~ certificate of need.

532 (c) A person who wilfully undertakes an activity subject to review ~~as described in~~ under § 9304 of this title and
533 who has not received a ~~Certificate of Public Review~~ certificate of need for that activity shall ~~must~~ be fined not less than
534 \$500 nor more than \$2,500 for each ~~offense and each~~ offense. Each day of a continuing violation after notice of violation
535 ~~shall be considered~~ is a separate offense. The Superior Court ~~shall have~~ has jurisdiction over criminal violations under this
536 subsection.

537 Section 9. Amend § 9309, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
538 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

539 § 9309. Surrender, ~~revocation~~ revocation, and ~~or~~ or transfer of ~~Certificate of Public Review~~ certificate of need.

540 (a) Surrender. ~~A Certificate of Public Review may be surrendered by the holder upon written notification to the~~
541 ~~Board and such surrender shall become effective immediately upon receipt of the Board. The holder of a certificate of need~~
542 may surrender the certificate upon written notification to the Executive Director. The surrender is effective immediately
543 upon the Executive Director's receipt of the written notification.

544 (b) Revocation. ~~A Certificate of Public Review may be revoked by the Board in the case of misrepresentation in~~
545 ~~the Certificate of Public Review application, failure to comply with conditions established by the Board pursuant to §~~

546 9303(d)(2) of this title, failure to undertake the activity for which the Certificate of Public Review was granted in a timely
547 manner or loss of license or other authority to operate.

548 (1) The Executive Director may revoke a certificate of need for any of the following reasons:

549 a. Misrepresentation in the application.

550 b. The failure of the holder of the certificate of need to comply with conditions established under
551 § 9303(d)(2) of this title.

552 c. The failure of the holder of the certificate of need to undertake in a timely manner the activity for
553 which the certificate was granted.

554 d. The loss of license or other authority to operate of the holder of the certificate of need.

555 (2) Prior to revoking a Certificate of Public Review, the Board certificate of need, the Executive Director shall
556 provide written notice to the holder of the certificate stating its the Executive Director's intent to revoke the certificate
557 and providing the holder at least 30 days to voluntarily surrender the certificate or to show good cause why the
558 certificate should not be revoked.

559 (3) No Certificate of Public Review shall be revoked by the Board The Executive Director may not revoke a
560 certificate of need without first providing the holder of the certificate an opportunity for a hearing.

561 (4) The Board's Executive Director's decision to revoke a Certificate of Public Review certificate of need
562 may be appealed pursuant to § 9305(8) under § 9305(c)(8) of this title.

563 (c) Transfer. No Certificate of Public Review issued under this chapter, and no rights or privileges arising
564 therefrom, shall be subject to transfer or assignment, directly or indirectly, except upon order or decision of the Board
565 specifically approving the same, issued pursuant to application supported by a finding from the evidence that the public to
566 be served will not be adversely affected thereby. A holder of a certificate of need may not transfer or assign, directly or
567 indirectly, the certificate or the rights or privileges arising from the certificate, unless the Executive Director issues an order
568 or decision specifically approving the transfer or assignment. The Executive Director's order or decision must be issued
569 under a written request by the certificate holder supported by a finding from the evidence that the transfer or assignment
570 will not adversely affect the public to be served by the transfer or assignment. The Department may establish a form for a
571 transfer or assignment request.

572 Section 10. Amend § 9310, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
573 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

574 § 9310. Immunity.

575 (a) ~~No A member, officer officer, or employee of the Board, the Bureau or health care facility shall be Advisory~~
576 Board, Department, or a health-care facility is not subject to, and such persons shall be and is immune from, any a claim,
577 suit, liability, damages or any other damages, or another recourse, civil or criminal, arising from ~~any an~~ act or proceeding,
578 decision or determination undertaken or performed, or ~~recommendations~~ recommendation made while discharging ~~any a~~
579 duty or authority under this ~~chapter,~~ chapter.

580 (b)(1) ~~so long as such person~~ Subsection (a) of this section applies only if the member, officer, or employee acted
581 in good faith, without malice, and within the scope of such person's member's, officer's, or employee's duty or authority
582 under this chapter or any other provisions another provision of the Delaware law, federal law law, or regulations or duly
583 adopted rules and regulations providing for the administration of this chapter, chapter.

584 (2) ~~good faith being presumed until proven otherwise, with malice to be shown by the complainant. Good~~
585 faith is presumed until proven otherwise, and the complainant has the burden to show that malice existed.

586 Section 11. Amend § 9311, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
587 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

588 § 9311. Charity care.

589 (a) ~~Any person subject to a CPR review pursuant to~~ An applicant subject to review under this chapter shall do all
590 of the following:

591 (1) ~~perform~~ Perform and accept within this State charity care to the extent ~~required by the Board that the~~
592 Department requires to those individuals who meet each individual who meets the criteria for rendering charity care
593 established by the Board, as the Department determines.

594 (2) ~~and shall continue~~ Continue to provide charity care in each fiscal year as ~~determined by the Board the~~
595 Department determines.

596 (b) ~~The authority to enforce charity care requirements shall rest with the Department of Health and Social~~
597 Services. The Department shall enforce charity care requirements.

598 (c) The Department may promulgate rules and regulations for charity care.

599 (d) The Department shall publish each received charity care plan or report on the Department's website.

600 Section 12. Amend § 9312, Title 16 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
601 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

602 § 9312. ~~Charity care [Transferred]~~. Utilization statistics and statewide health-care facility utilization study.

603 (a)(1) An applicant subject to a review under this chapter shall report utilization statistics to the Department
604 annually using a form that the Department establishes.

605 (2) Each health-care facility in this state shall provide utilization data to the Department, to assist the
606 Department in completing the utilization study required under subsection (e) of this section.

607 (b) The Secretary of the Department may collect annual utilization reporting requirements.

608 (c) The Department may promulgate rules and regulations for collecting and reporting utilization statistics.

609 (d) The Department shall use reported utilization statistics in the production of a state-wide health-care facility
610 utilization study.

611 (e) The Department shall conduct and produce a state-wide health-care facility utilization study biennially.

612 (1) The Department may use contract support to produce the study.

613 (2) The Advisory Board shall advise the Department on the production of the study.

614 (3) The study shall include assessments of each of the following in Delaware:

615 a. Current cost, availability, and utilization of acute hospital care.

616 b. Hospital emergency care.

617 c. Specialty hospital care.

618 d. Outpatient surgical care.

619 e. Primary care and clinic care.

620 f. Long-term care.

621 g. Assisted living care.

622 h. Rest residential home care.

623 i. Geographic areas and subpopulations that may be underserved or have reduced access to specific types
624 of health-care services.

625 j. Unmet needs of persons at risk and vulnerable populations as the Department determines, with advice
626 from the Advisory Board in determining the persons and populations.

627 k. Projection of future demand for health-care services and the impact that technology may have on the
628 demand, capacity, or need for the services, and recommendations for the expansion, reduction, or modification of
629 health-care facilities or services.

630 l. Other factors that the Department may determine are pertinent to health-care facility utilization.
631 (4) The Department shall publish the study on its website and submit copies of the study to the Governor, the
632 General Assembly, and the Director and the Librarian of the Division of Legislative Services.
633 (5) The Executive Director and Advisory Board shall use the study as a resource in the review of each
634 application under this chapter.
635 Section 13. This Act takes effect 6 months after [the date of enactment of this Act].
636 Section 14. The first report under § 9312, Title 16 of this Act is due no later than [the second January 1 after
637 the date of enactment of this Act].
638 Section 15. This Act applies to an application that is filed on or after [the effective date of this Act].
639 Section 16. Advisory Board membership under § 9303, Title 16 of this Act take effect on [the effective date of
640 this Act].

SYNOPSIS

This Act is a result of the Joint Legislative Oversight and Sunset Committee's ("JLOSC") review of the Delaware Health Resources Board, which this Act renames the Delaware Health Resources Advisory Board ("Advisory Board"). Based on the research, review, and discussion of both the JLOSC and a task force created to assist the JLOSC's research, JLOSC approved recommendations to change the Advisory Board into an advisory council and move the Advisory Board's decision-making authority to the Delaware Health Care Commission's executive director. In addition to those approved recommendations, this Act also implements JLOSC's approval to amend the Advisory Board's statute in the following ways:

- Renames the certificate of public review process to the nationally-recognized name of "certificate of need."
- Clarifies procedures and review considerations, including removing the Health Resources Management Plan ("Plan") and codifying relevant sections of the Plan. The Plan will be replaced by a statewide health-care facility utilization study, be conducted on a biennial basis, and include utilization information to process certificate of review applications.
- Adjusting for inflation, updates the monetary threshold that triggers the requirement for a certificate of need application. The monetary threshold has not been updated since 2007.
- Removes references to the Bureau of Health Planning and Resources Management, because staff support was transferred in 2012 to the Delaware Health Care Commission and DHSS, Office of the Secretary.

This Act takes effect 6 months after the date of enactment. This Act does not apply to applications that are submitted before the enactment date of this Act.